
           

TOWN OF LITTLE ELM
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
November 2, 2023

Persons may address the Planning and Zoning Commission on any issue. This is the appropriate time for citizens to address the Commission on any
concern whether on this agenda or not. Each member of the public who desires to address the P&Z Commission regarding an item on an agenda for an
open meeting of the P&Z Commission shall have the right to address the Commission on the item before the Commission’s consideration of the item. All
speakers not requiring a translator are given 3 minutes to speak and may address the Commission only once on each agenda item. Non-English Speakers
who require a translator are given 6 minutes to speak and may address the Commission only once on each agenda item. In accordance with the State of
Texas Open Meeting Act, the board may not comment or deliberate such statements during this period, except as authorized by Section 551.042, Texas
Government Code. To address the Commission for any public hearing item please sign a speaker’s sheet located on the tables by the front entry and
submit to a Staff member. 
 

           
1. 5:45 PM Work Session   
 

2. 6:00 PM Regular Meeting   
 

3. Roll Call   
 

4. Discuss and take action to select a Chairperson.
 
5. Consent Agenda   
 

1. Discuss and take action regarding the approval of the October 19, 2023, Regular Planning and
Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes.

 
2. FINAL PLAT/ Lake Pointe (FP-23-02563) Presentation, discussion, and consideration on a request

for approval of a Final Plat consisting of 77.030 acres, situated in the Marsella Jones Survey,
Abstract No. 66, T. Rodriguez Survey, Abstract No. 1068, and J.M. Mcneil Survey, Abstract 884,
within Little Elm's Town Extraterritorial Limits, in order to establish 222 residential lots, 15 open
space lots, and necessary right-of-way and easements necessary for development. 

Presentation
Discussion
Consideration

 
6. Regular Agenda   
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING/ Lakeside Shops and Business Park Amendment (PD-23-04008). Public hearing,



1. PUBLIC HEARING/ Lakeside Shops and Business Park Amendment (PD-23-04008). Public hearing,
discussion, and take action on a recommendation regarding a request to rezone approximately
five acres of land, currently zoned as Planned Development, based on Light Commercial
Standards, through Ordinance No. 1477, generally located 300 feet east of the intersection of
Old Highway 24 and Oak Grove Parkway, within Little Elm’s town limits, in order to amend the
permitted uses within the Planned Development District. 

Staff Report
Continue Public Hearing
Receive Public Comment
Close Public Hearing
Discussion and Recommendation

 
7. Discussion of future agenda items, update on Council action, and requests for

new business considerations
  

 

8. Adjourn   
 

 

Certificate
 

I certify that the above notice of the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting was posted on the bulletin board
of the Town of Little Elm, Texas on October 30th, 2023, prior to 6:00 p.m. The Little Elm Town Hall is
wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or
interpretive service must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the Town Secretary’s office
at 214-975-0404 or 972-377-5540 (fax) for arrangements.

  
_____________________________________________________

Brian Salvesen - Senior Planner



TOWN OF LITTLE ELM
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
11/02/2023

OVERVIEW
  

Project Discuss and take action to select a Chairperson

P&Z Hearing 11/02/2023

Council Hearing N/A

Size N/A

Current Zoning N/A

Proposed Use N/A

Existing Use N/A

Future Land Use
Plan Designation

N/A

Applicant N/A

Owner N/A

Strategic Goal

Agenda Item
Discuss and take action to select a Chairperson.

Location
N/A

Planning Analysis
Chairperson Bell has requested to step down from the roll of Chairperson but remain in his roll as P&Z
Commissioner. Per Town Code the Commission must have a Chairperson and Vice-Chair in order to do
business. 

Recommended Action
N/A



TOWN OF LITTLE ELM
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
11/02/2023

OVERVIEW
  

Project N/A

P&Z Hearing 11/02/2023

Council Hearing N/A

Size N/A

Current Zoning N/A

Proposed Use N/A

Existing Use N/A

Future Land Use
Plan Designation

N/A

Applicant N/A

Owner N/A

Strategic Goal

Agenda Item
Discuss and take action regarding the approval of the October 19, 2023, Regular Planning and Zoning
Commission Meeting Minutes.

Location
N/A

Planning Analysis
N/A

Recommended Action
N/A

Attachments
Meeting Minutes 10 19 23 



D R A F T
Minutes

Town of Little Elm
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Regular Meeting
Thursday, OCTOBER 19, 2023 - 7:00 pm

 

Present: Tom Ocelli, Commissioner; Brent Thibeaux, Commissioner; Robert Martin, Commissioner;
Deb Cadet , Alternate Commissioner 

Absent: Jack Skinner, Commissioner; Stephen Horn, Commissioner; Michael Bell, Chairman; Ron
Trees, Vice-Chair; Chip Norman, Commissioner 

Staff Present: Olga Chernomorets, Managing Director of Planning Services
Brian Salvesen, Senior Planner
Citlali Castro, Planner

 

               
1. 5:45 PM Work Session
 
2. 6:00 PM Regular Meeting
 
3. Roll Call
 
  Motion: Appoint Commissioner Robert Martin as temporary Chair. 
 

  Motion by Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, seconded by Commissioner Tom Ocelli 

  AYE: Commissioner Tom Ocelli, Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, Commissioner Robert
Martin, Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

4 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

 
4. Consent Agenda
 
  Motion: Approve consent agenda as presented.
 

  Motion by Commissioner Tom Ocelli, seconded by Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

  AYE: Commissioner Tom Ocelli, Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, Commissioner Robert
Martin, Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

4 - 0 Passed - Unanimously



 
1. Discuss and take action regarding the approval of the October 5, 2023, Regular Planning and

Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes.
  

 
  Agenda item approved in consent agenda motion.
 

2. FINAL PLAT/ Lake Pointe (FP-23-02563) Presentation, discussion, and consideration on a request
for approval of a Final Plat consisting of 77.030 acres, situated in the Marsella Jones Survey,
Abstract No. 66, T. Rodriguez Survey, Abstract No. 1068, and J.M. Mcneil Survey, Abstract 884,
within Little Elm's Town Extraterritorial Limits, in order to establish 222 residential lots, 15 open
space lots, and necessary right-of-way and easements necessary for development. 

Presentation
Discussion
Consideration

  

 
  Applicant's extension request approved in Consent Agenda motion. 
 
5. Regular Agenda
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING/3573 Pinnacle Bay (RP-23-03501). Public hearing, discussion, and take action on
a recommendation regarding a request for a replat of Block A, Lot 140A, of Sunrise Bay at Lake
Lewisville, from one residential lot into two residential lots, Lots 140 and 141, on approximately
2.669 acres of land generally located northwest of the intersection of Pinnacle Bay Drive and
Pinnacle Circle, approximately 300 feet west of the eastern terminus of Pinnacle Bay Drive, within
Little Elm’s town limits. 

Staff Report
Continue Public Comment
Close Public Hearing
Discussion and Recommendation

  

 
  Staff presented the agenda item. 

Commissioner Martin closed public hearing at 6:03pm. 

Motion:Approve the applicants request to withdraw. 
 

  Motion by Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, seconded by Commissioner Tom Ocelli 

  AYE: Commissioner Tom Ocelli, Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, Commissioner Robert
Martin, Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

4 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

 
2. PUBLIC HEARING/ Alta 380 Planned Development Amendment (PD-23-03411). Public hearing,

discussion, and take action on a recommendation regarding a request to rezone approximately 35
acres of land, currently zoned as Planned Development based on Light Commercial and
Multifamily District Standards through Ordinance No. 1589, as amended by Ordinance No. 1713,
generally located on the northwest corner of US Highway 380 and FM 2931, within Little Elm’s
town limits, in order to amend the existing concept plan to provide for modifications to the

  



internal site layout. 
Staff Report
Open Public Hearing
Receive Public Comment
Close Public Hearing
Discussion and Recommendation

 
  Staff presented the agenda item. 

The applicant was there to answer questions if needed. 

Commissioner Cadet had questions regarding the timeline of the project, and potential tenants. 

Commissioner Martin asked if the detention pond already existed. 

Commissioner Martin opened the public hearing at 6:16pm 

The public hearing was closed at 6:16 pm. 

Commissioner Ocelli supported the agenda item because of the time that put to get the project
to where it is now. 

Commissioner Martin also supported the agenda item because the applicant continued to work
on the item, even after they were denied and believes it will be great for the Town of Little Elm. 

Commissioner Thibeaux supported the agenda item because it is new development in the Town
of Little Elm.   

Motion: Approve agenda item with the following conditions:  
Interior commercial lots can utilize future multitenant monument signs located on either
Lot 7 or Lot 10, of the existing subdivision plat. The proposed signs for all lots will
otherwise be required to meet all Town Standards in Chapters 86 and 106.
Detention/Retention areas along a right-of-way may be amenitized with improvements. A
bench, shaded seating structure or pavilion constitutes an improvement. A paved walking
path must be provided along one internal side of the pond, connecting to existing
sidewalks. Tree planting shall be provided ash shown on the Planting Concept Plan. All
landscaping within these areas shall be irrigated and shall comply with the Zoning
Ordinance, as it exists or may be amended in accordance with the standards in effect at
the time of development or requested change. 
Detention/Retention planning and improvements shall be provided at the time of Site
Development Permitting of first of the two commercial lots along the northern most
boundary, intended for hotel development.
Modifications to the Concept Site Layout:  

The Concept Plan attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference,
demonstrates locations of the proposed and existing buildings and improvements
within the Subject Property. Any amendment to the concept plan approved as a part
of the ordinance establishing the Planned Development District is a change in zoning
district classification and must follow the same procedures as set forth in Section
106.04.03, except that the Director of Development Services may approve revisions
which do not alter the basic relationship of the proposed development and reflect
the original intent of this Planned Development District.

 

  Motion by Commissioner Tom Ocelli, seconded by Commissioner Brent Thibeaux 



  Motion by Commissioner Tom Ocelli, seconded by Commissioner Brent Thibeaux 

  AYE: Commissioner Tom Ocelli, Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, Commissioner Robert
Martin, Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

4 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING/ Lakeside Shops and Business Park Amendment (PD-23-04008). Public hearing,

discussion, and take action on a recommendation regarding a request to rezone approximately
five acres of land, currently zoned as Planned Development, based on Light Commercial
Standards, through Ordinance No. 1477, generally located 300 feet east of the intersection of Old
Highway 24 and Oak Grove Parkway, within Little Elm’s town limits, in order to amend the
permitted uses within the Planned Development District. 

Staff Report
Open Public Hearing
Receive Public Comment
Close Public Hearing
Discussion and Recommendation

  

 
  The applicant's extension request was presented by staff.

Commissioner Martin opened the public hearing at 6:19pm and left it open.  

Motion: Approve the applicant's extension request extending the item to the November 2nd,
2023 Regular Planning and Zoning Meeting.

 

  Motion by Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, seconded by Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

  AYE: Commissioner Tom Ocelli, Commissioner Brent Thibeaux, Commissioner Robert
Martin, Alternate Commissioner Deb Cadet 

4 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

 
6. Discussion of future agenda items, update on Council action, and requests for

new business considerations
 
  The consideration the request to notify HOAs about subdivision of land in residential areas will

be addressed through a workshop discussion at the November 2nd, 2023 meeting. 
 
7. Adjourn
 
  Meeting adjourned at 6:23pm. 
 

 



TOWN OF LITTLE ELM
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
11/02/2023

OVERVIEW
  

Project FINAL PLAT/ Lake Pointe (FP-23-02563)

P&Z Hearing 11/02/2023

Council Hearing N/A

Size Approximately 77.030 acres

Current Zoning Extraterritorial Jurisdiction

Proposed Use Residential

Existing Use Vacant

Future Land Use
Plan Designation

Ranchette Residential

Applicant Kirby Jones, Petit Engineering

Owner Paloma South LP

Strategic Goal

Agenda Item
FINAL PLAT/ Lake Pointe (FP-23-02563) Presentation, discussion, and consideration on a request for approval
of a Final Plat consisting of 77.030 acres, situated in the Marsella Jones Survey, Abstract No. 66, T. Rodriguez
Survey, Abstract No. 1068, and J.M. Mcneil Survey, Abstract 884, within Little Elm's Town Extraterritorial
Limits, in order to establish 222 residential lots, 15 open space lots, and necessary right-of-way and
easements necessary for development. 

Presentation
Discussion
Consideration

Location
Generally located on the southwest corner of Izzy Lane and Gammon Road, within Little Elm's Extraterritorial
Jurisdiction.

Planning Analysis
The purpose of a final plat is to ensure that the proposed subdivision and development of the land is
consistent with all standards of the Town's Subdivision Ordinance pertaining to the adequacy of public
facilities, that public improvements to serve the subdivision or development have been installed and
accepted by the Town or that provision for such installation has been made, that all other requirements and
conditions have been satisfied or provided to allow the final plat to be recorded.



Recommended Action
Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:  

Hatch any easements that are to be abandoned
Include Name and Email of preparer
Include recording information for easement recorded by separate plat before this plat is recorded
Provide wall maintenance easement (WME) for all walls greater than 4'.
Clarify or remove text annotated by engineering review. 

Attachments
Location Map 
Lake Pointe Plat 



A
lg

ar
di

D
r

LORAINE DR

Kurelek Dr

Monet Dr

O
 K

ee
fe

 C
t

O
Ke

ef
e

D
r Allston

D
r

Van
Gogh

D
r

O
ud

ry
D

r

Gam
m

on Rd

Es
he

r
D

r

M
ickey

Ln

Selm
a

D
r

Lake Sierra Way

Izzy Ln

Doe Branch Rd

¯
Town of Little Elm
Denton County, Tx

Lake Pointe Subdivision
Little Elm, TX 75068

Date: 10/26/2023

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 G
:\

G
IS

Fo
rT

ow
nE

m
pl

oy
ee

s\
D

ev
Se

rv
ic

es
\J

os
e\

Lo
ca

tio
nM

ap
\

Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, NGA, EPA, USDA, NPS

This product is to be used for graphical
representation only. The accuracy is not to be taken/
used
as data produced for engineering purposes or by a
Registered Professional Land Surveyor
for the State of Texas. For this level of detail,
supervision and certification of the produced data
by a Registered Professional Land Surveyor for the
State of Texas would have to be performed.
Town of Little Elm and its members assume no
responsibility for the accuracy of said data.

Source: Town of Little Elm,
NearMap, Denton County Appraisal
District

Subject Property

Parcels

Town Limits

Town ETJ

0 370 740
US Feet





LOT SF AC

1 92261 2.118

2 68227 1.566

4 135002 3.099

5 9737 0.224

6 7995 0.184

7 9191 0.211

8 6755 0.155

9 6661 0.153

10 6030 0.138

11 5750 0.132

12 5750 0.132

13 5750 0.132

14 5750 0.132

15 5750 0.132

16 5750 0.132

17 5750 0.132

18 5750 0.132

19 5750 0.132

20 5750 0.132

21 6112 0.140

22 7030 0.161

23 7138 0.164

3X 82567 1.895

24X 1188 0.027

25X 102783 2.360

TOTAL 606177 13.916

BLOCK A

LOT SF AC

1 8622 0.198

2 6600 0.152

3 6600 0.152

4 8256 0.190

5 7329 0.168

6 6029 0.138

7 5828 0.134

8 5750 0.132

9 5750 0.132

10 5750 0.132

11 5750 0.132

12 5750 0.132

13 5750 0.132

14 5750 0.132

15 5750 0.132

16 6474 0.149

17 6288 0.144

18 6763 0.155

19 6678 0.153

20 6345 0.146

21 7010 0.161

22 6848 0.157

23 7131 0.164

24 6981 0.160

25 6836 0.157

26 6356 0.146

27 5811 0.133

28 5842 0.134

29 5873 0.135

30 5904 0.136

31 5935 0.136

32 5965 0.137

33 5996 0.138

34 6021 0.138

35 6414 0.147

36 7535 0.173

37X 2342 0.054

TOTAL 232612 5.340

BLOCK B

LOT SF AC

1 10220 0.235

2 6240 0.143

3 9000 0.207

4 8378 0.192

5 5750 0.132

6 5750 0.132

7 5750 0.132

8 5750 0.132

9 5750 0.132

10 5750 0.132

11 5750 0.132

12 5750 0.132

13 5750 0.132

14 5750 0.132

15 6987 0.160

16 6119 0.140

17 6200 0.142

18 6527 0.150

19 8130 0.187

20 7728 0.177

21 6247 0.143

22 6333 0.145

23 7065 0.162

24 6363 0.146

25 5750 0.132

26 5750 0.132

27 5750 0.132

28 5750 0.132

29 5750 0.132

30 5750 0.132

31 5750 0.132

32 5750 0.132

33 5750 0.132

34 5750 0.132

35 7363 0.169

36X 2428 0.056

TOTAL 226328 5.196

BLOCK C

LOT SF AC

1 6002 0.138

2 6003 0.138

3 6004 0.138

4 6005 0.138

5 6006 0.138

6 6007 0.138

7 6008 0.138

8 6009 0.138

9 6010 0.138

10 6011 0.138

11 6012 0.138

12 6013 0.138

13 6014 0.138

14 6685 0.153

15 6997 0.161

16 7007 0.161

17 7966 0.183

18 8922 0.205

19 11910 0.273

20X 2938 0.067

TOTAL 130529 2.997

BLOCK D

LOT SF AC

1 6974 0.160

2 6075 0.139

3 6075 0.139

4 6075 0.139

5 6075 0.139

6 6075 0.139

7 6075 0.139

8 6075 0.139

9 6075 0.139

10 6000 0.138

11 6000 0.138

12 6332 0.145

13 6879 0.158

14 6964 0.160

15 6885 0.158

16 10719 0.246

17 10054 0.231

18 5474 0.126

19 6030 0.138

20 6029 0.138

21 6028 0.138

22 6027 0.138

23 6027 0.138

24 6026 0.138

25 6025 0.138

26 6024 0.138

27 6023 0.138

28 6022 0.138

29 7055 0.162

30X 1138 0.026

31X 81817 1.878

32MSUD 3893 0.089

TOTAL 275045 6.314

BLOCK E

LOT SF AC

1 7571 0.174

2 6554 0.150

3 5875 0.135

4 5875 0.135

5 5875 0.135

6 5875 0.135

7 5875 0.135

8 6463 0.148

9 6463 0.148

10 6899 0.158

11 9820 0.225

12 7924 0.182

13 6463 0.148

14 6463 0.148

15 6463 0.148

16 5875 0.135

17 5875 0.135

18 5875 0.135

19 5875 0.135

20 5993 0.138

21 6340 0.146

22 8535 0.196

23X 2319 0.053

TOTAL 147145 3.378

BLOCK F

LOT SF AC

1 7278 0.167

2 6396 0.147

3 6087 0.140

4 6000 0.138

5 6000 0.138

6 6000 0.138

7 6000 0.138

8 6000 0.138

9 6267 0.144

10 6948 0.160

11 9663 0.222

12 7325 0.168

13 6288 0.144

14 6600 0.152

15 6600 0.152

16 6600 0.152

17 6600 0.152

18 6171 0.142

19 6172 0.142

20 6171 0.142

21 5961 0.137

22 7575 0.174

23X 2427 0.056

TOTAL 147129 3.378

BLOCK G

LOT SF AC

1 9272 0.213

2 6169 0.142

3 5875 0.135

4 5875 0.135

5 5875 0.135

6 5875 0.135

7 6463 0.148

8 7134 0.164

9 6824 0.157

10 10419 0.239

11 7865 0.181

12 6050 0.139

13 6472 0.149

14 6471 0.149

15 6471 0.149

16 6471 0.149

17 5875 0.135

18 5898 0.135

19 6494 0.149

20 9203 0.211

21X 2565 0.059

TOTAL 139616 3.205

BLOCK H

LOT SF AC

1 8228 0.189

2 6137 0.141

3 5844 0.134

4 6014 0.138

5 5750 0.132

6 5750 0.132

7 5750 0.132

8 5750 0.132

9 5750 0.132

10 6308 0.145

11 8167 0.187

12 126048 2.894

13X 1190 0.027

TOTAL 196686 4.515

BLOCK J

LOT SF AC

1 146189 3.356

2 43949 1.009

3 23236 0.533

4 49586 1.138

5X 86868 1.994

6X 77497 1.779

7X 12992 0.298

TOTAL 440317 10.108

BLOCK K

LOT SF AC

1 167000 3.834

TOTAL 167000 3.834

BLOCK L

BLOCK SF AC

A 606177 13.916

B 232612 5.340

C 226328 5.196

D 130529 2.997

E 275045 6.314

F 147145 3.378

G 147129 3.378

H 139616 3.205

J 196686 4.515

K 440317 10.108

L 167000 3.834

ROW 646850 14.850

TOTAL 2708584 77.030

BLOCKS



TOWN OF LITTLE ELM
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
11/02/2023

OVERVIEW
  

Project PUBLIC HEARING/ Lakeside Shops and Business Park Amendment (PD-23-04008)

P&Z Hearing 11/02/2023

Council Hearing December 5, 2023

Size Approximately 5 acres

Current Zoning Light Commercial (LC)

Proposed Use Planned Development (Light Commercial)

Existing Use Vacant

Future Land Use
Plan Designation

Neighborhood Retail/Commercial

Applicant Daniel Kelleher, Lakeside Shops and Business Park, LLC 

Owner Daniel Kelleher, Lakeside Shops and Business Park, LLC 

Strategic Goal

Agenda Item
PUBLIC HEARING/ Lakeside Shops and Business Park Amendment (PD-23-04008). Public hearing, discussion,
and take action on a recommendation regarding a request to rezone approximately five acres of land,
currently zoned as Planned Development, based on Light Commercial Standards, through Ordinance No.
1477, generally located 300 feet east of the intersection of Old Highway 24 and Oak Grove Parkway, within
Little Elm’s town limits, in order to amend the permitted uses within the Planned Development District. 

Staff Report
Continue Public Hearing
Receive Public Comment
Close Public Hearing
Discussion and Recommendation

Location
Generally located 300 feet east of the intersection of Old Highway 24 and Oak Grove Parkway, within Little
Elm’s town limits. 

Planning Analysis
Background.



Background.
The subject property consists of one commercial lot of approximately 5 acres, currently zoned Planned
Development - Light Commercial (PD-LC) through Ordinance No. 1477, which was passed in 2018. The
property was initially annexed into the Town in 1971, through Ordinance No. 41. The site currently has four
buildings under construction, one light commercial retail building in the front of the property, and
three office/warehouse buildings in the rear of the property. The surrounding properties to the east and
north are zoned Agricultural, the properties to the south and west are zoned Light Commercial.

The Town’s Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) for the area was amended to include the results of the West Side
Study. The study was adopted in August 2022, four years after the Planned Development for this site was
approved. This site, as well as those properties to the south and west, were designated as Neighborhood
Retail/Commercial (NRS) in the updated FLUP, envisioning neighborhood level retail and commercial
services. The properties to the north and east were designated Neighborhood in the updated FLUP. In the
FLUP at the time the original PD was adopted in 2017, the FLUP had the property designated mixed use, at
the time, a mix of uses for retail and office/warehouse was within the FLUP’s designation of mixed use. 

Planned Development - Light Commercial (PD-LC) Ordinance No. 1477 specifically lists the uses allowed by
right. It appears the uses were picked from the Light Commercial column of the use chart, which is atypical
from how PD ordinances have been written. More recent PD ordinances state that the newly established PD
is to follow the uses and standards of the Light Commercial District unless otherwise listed in the ordinance. 

As the property is finishing up construction, the property owner is searching for interested tenants to occupy
the new buildings. The most recent interested tenant is a dog daycare, with indoor boarding only, which is
typically allowed by right within the Light Commercial district. However, because this PD Ordinance
specifically lists out the uses, and this use was not listed, the tenant would not be able to locate on this
property. The property owner is concerned that this will result in challenges for the development moving
forward. 

Proposal.
The applicant is proposing to amend the existing PD to simply state that all uses allowed by right under the
Light Commercial District be included as allowed on this property. Given the PD's allowance for an additional
modified use of warehouse/office, at limited capacity, with the back buildings being constructed to
accommodate such uses, the applicant is also requesting to add a handful of modified uses with this request.

The proposed modified uses are as follow:
  
Use Proposal Town Code

for LC
Town Code
for LI

Heavy Machinery Showroom and
Storage, Indoor Only*

SUP NP P

Auto, Boat, Sales/leasing and storage,
new and used, Indoor Only*

SUP NP P

Restaurant Drive Thru P SUP P

Manufacturing, Light Assembly SUP NP C

Reprographic Shop* SUP NP P

P: Permitted
C: Conditional Use Permit
SUP: Specific Use Permit
NP: Not Permitted
*  This use is not verbatim in the Town’s use chart. See use descriptions below.



Heavy Machinery Showroom and Storage, Indoor Only 
Currently, Section 106.01.14 defines “Heavy machinery sales, service, and storage” as a retail or
wholesale facility that sells, services and stores heavy machinery such as farm equipment, dredging
equipment, paving equipment, etc. This use is permitted in Light Industrial (LI) Districts per the Town’s
Use Chart, but it is Not Permitted in LC Districts.
 
Applicant is proposing “Heavy Machinery Showroom and Storage, Indoor Only,” without the service
component, defined as “A retail or wholesale facility that sells and stores heavy machinery such as
farm equipment, dredging equipment, paving equipment, etc., without any outdoor storage.”
 
“Heavy Machinery Showroom and Storage, Indoor Only” would become permitted through SUP
approval.

  
Auto, Boat, Sales/leasing and storage, new and used, Indoor Only* 

In the Town’s Use Chart, there is no “indoor only” distinction for auto and boat uses; these uses are
broken up into three different categories. “Auto, Boat Sales/leasing new, outdoor display”, is allowed
in the LC districts with a SUP and permitted by right in LI districts. “Auto/Boat sales, used, outdoor
display” and “Auto/boat/RV storage” are prohibited in LC districts, and Permitted by right in LI
Districts. There is no “indoor only” distinction for these uses in the Town’s use chart.
 
Applicant is proposing “Auto, Boat, Sales/leasing and storage, new and used, Indoor Only” defined as
“Retail sales, rental, leasing, and/or showroom/storage of new or used operable automobiles, light
load vehicles, or boats, without any outdoor storage or display.”
 
 “Auto, Boat, Sales/leasing and storage, new and used, Indoor Only” would become permitted through
SUP approval.

  
Restaurant Drive Thru 

“Restaurant Drive Thru” is being proposed as permitted by right. Currently, the PD has this use as
requiring a SUP but the approved site plan showed a proposed drive-thru. At the time when the
original PD was approved, drive-thru uses did not require a SUP in LC districts, but that has since
changed. Now any new development plans in LC districts require a SUP.

  
Manufacturing, Light Assembly 

Currently, Section 106.01.14 defines “Manufacturing or industrial uses, light” as: “A facility that
involves assembly and fabrication activities and the use of machines, tools and labor to make items for
use or sale. May also include warehousing, research and development, wholesaling operations with
infrequent customer or client visits, and may include related office and shipping areas. Light industry is
often assembly-based and is typically consumer-oriented (i.e., most light industrial products are sold to
retail stores or end users rather than as intermediate parts for use by other industries). Light industry
generally has less environmental impact than those associated with heavy industry. Light industry may
employ lower skilled workers with only moderate training and often employ large numbers of people.
Light industries require a relatively small amount of raw materials, area and power. Examples of light
industry include, but are not limited to, plastic items, clothing, shoes, foods, beverages, personal care
and home care products, cosmetics, drugs, furniture, consumer electronics, and home appliances.”
 
This use is prohibited in LC districts, and requires a CUP in LI districts.
 
Applicant is proposing “Manufacturing, Light Assembly” limited to light assembly, to ensure minimal
nuisances emanating to the adjacent suites, buildings, or properties, with the following definition:

“A facility that involves light assembly, fabrication, and/or packaging of finished products or
parts, predominately from previously prepared materials, and the use of small-scale machinery,
tools and labor to make items for use or sale. May also include warehousing, research and



development, wholesaling operations with infrequent customer or client visits, and may include
related office and shipping areas. Light industry is often assembly-based and is typically
consumer-oriented (i.e., most light industrial products are sold to retail stores or end users
rather than as intermediate parts for use by other industries). Light industry generally has less
environmental impact than those associated with heavy industry. Light industries require a
relatively small amount of raw materials, area and power. Examples of light industry include, but
are not limited to, plastic items, clothing, shoes, foods, beverages, personal care and home care
products, cosmetics, drugs, furniture, consumer electronics, and home appliances.”
 

“Manufacturing, Light Assembly” would become permitted through SUP approval.
  
Reprographic Shop 

Currently, Section 106.01.14 defines “Printing plant, reprographic shop” as a “facility for the
reproduction of materials or drawings on a job order or bulk basis utilizing lithography, off-set printing,
or other printing techniques.” While this definition exists, this specific use is not in the Town’s Use
Chart.
 
Applicant is proposing “Reprographic Shop” to be defined as “A facility for the reproduction of
materials or drawings on a job order basis utilizing lithography, off-set printing, digital printing, or
other printing techniques, for purposed of custom design, promotional marketing, banners, brochures,
posters, mounting, lamination, bindery, and graphic design. etc.”
 
Staff believes the proposed is a middle ground between “Retail Print Shop” which is allowed by right in
LC, and “Industrial Print Shop”, which is prohibited in LC districts, and permitted by right in LI districts.
“Reprographic Shop” would become permitted through SUP approval.

Site Design.
There are no site design alterations being proposed in this PD amendment.

Subdivision.
There are no Subdivision alterations being proposed in this PD amendment. The properties currently have an
approved Plat from the Planning and Zoning Commission, but have not completed their public improvements
yet. When the public improvements are complete, Town Staff will be able to sign the plat and release it to
the applicant for filing.

Signage.
There are no signage amendments being proposed in this PD amendment.

Fire, Engineering, Building.
There is no site design or building changes in this proposal. Any building plans or site revisions that arise from
this PD will still need to go through the site or building permit review process.

Comprehensive Plan.
When the initial PD was approved the intent was to provide an opportunity for a blend of Light Commercial
and Light Industrial uses in an office/warehouse environment. The original PD adheres to the growth and
employment opportunity goals of the Comprehensive plan by allowing an area for unique businesses to
locate in Little Elm and create diverse employment opportunities.
 
 

Recommended Action
The intent of the original PD was to provide an opportunity for a blend of Light Commercial and Light



The intent of the original PD was to provide an opportunity for a blend of Light Commercial and Light
Industrial uses in an office/warehouse environment to provide for businesses that need on-site storage in a
warehouse-type setting. Staff and the Applicant have worked to refine the proposed uses and their
definitions to ensure they are suitable for this particular site and fall within the intent of the original PD.
 
Staff believes these amendments to the original PD continue to meet the intent of the original PD, the
Comprehensive Plan, the Future Land Use Plan, and the recent amendments to the Future Land Use Plan. The
safeguards put in place in this amendment both better define the uses allowed in this development and
require certain uses obtain SUP to mitigate any potential nuisances. These changes will also ensure the
success of this development moving forward by providing a wider variety of suitable long term tenants. In
exploring the surrounding areas, there is limited new development of this type of blended commercial/light
industry product. This allows the Town to grow in unique ways and diversify its workforce, both goals of the
Comprehensive Plan.
 
Staff generally supports the proposals and recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission review the
request based on the intent of the original PD, Comprehensive Plan, and the impact and suitability of the
proposed use changes within the context of the existing area and meets the overall vision for the Town.
 

Attachments
Location Map 
Ordinance 1477 


























	Agenda
	AI_1790_Discuss and take action to select a Chairperson
	AI_1788_Adoption of the October 19, 2023 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_Meeting Minutes 10 19 23
	AI_1785_FINAL PLAT/ Lake Pointe (FP-23-02563)
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Lake Pointe Plat
	AI_1786_PUBLIC HEARING/ Lakeside Shops and Business Park Amendment (PD-23-04008)
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Ordinance 1477

